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psychologist Eric Marcus and psychiaarist Seymour Pollack — would create 
endless poOitical controversy, reported tie newspaper-. 

* •

TUESDAY, MARCH 25 -- The Sirhan trial was continued until Wednes­

day as the prosecution asked for time in which to study yesterday’s testi­
mony by Dr. Bernard L. Diamond. .

According to a Los Angeles newspaper (Herald-Examiner), tie pros­
ecution, headed by Chief Dep. Dist. Atty. Lynn D. Compton, and including 

Dep. Dist. Attys. John Howard and David N. Fitts, were n^t prepared ■■to 

attack Dr. Diamond’s story today. •
They won the 24-hour repreeve foom Supeeior Judge Herbert V. Walker 

an order to study the testmmony before beginning ^oss-exarnnation.
Added the newspaper:

■ Part of the reason for this delay was the mechanics of the Sirhan 
trial. Unlike the other esychiatrisSs and psychologists in the case, Dr. 

Diamond prepared no written report.

• The official record of Dr. Diamond’s testmmony was not available 
to the prosecution unnil 10 p.m. Monday from the offcce court reporter.’’
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■ WEDNESDAY, MARCH 26 -- Sirhan B. Sirhan was in a "disseciatiee

state" -- a sort of self-induced trance — the n# he shot Sen. Robert 

F. Kennedy, a defense piychhaariit, Dr. Bernard L. Dismc^, t^tif^ 

today under cross-exam-nation by Dep. Dist. Atty. DavM N. Fitts.
One Los Angeles newspaper (Herald-Exmiiner) reported that 

Dr. Diamond told Fitts that Sirhan’s practice of selfhyypnosis was a 

warning signal "that should, have led to the young Arab’s ^mmitment to 
a mental iiitidutOon before June 2, 1968 — the day ths .pro^sution 
honi;endi Sirhan staked out the Ambassador Hotel preparatory t° shooting 

Kennedy early tbe morning of June 5.” • .

The newspaper published this account of the questionnng: 
iq. — on June 2, Sirhan wasn't hommitable?,

• ima, — I, for one, woiuLd certainly have reoonmended his 

commitment.' - '
"O. -- Bu-t he hadn't done anything wrong at that t°ie?'

"A. — No, but I would have been very alamed by hie note­
book and his psychie experiments. For a paranoid to use self-hypnosis 

and write such things in his note books its a warning signal that no 

piychhaariit h°dld ignore. •
"'Sirhan was a very dangerous individual,’ Dr. DismoM con­

cluded.."

Regarding Sirhan's diisociative state, Litis asked the psy­

chiatrist what evidence h.e had to support tire doctor's intention that 

Sindian had had similar experiences previously.

"Thsre is one thing,11 Diamiond said. "I'm satisfied from tdie

more —
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descriptions, and from what I observed when I had him under hypnosis 

that he had been in that state before.,:

Ealier, Diamond testffied that Sirhan would have biin dis­

orientated and incapable of planning his em actions.

Here is peart of the story published in aether Lis Angeles 

newspaper (Times): ‘
"Fitts suggested to Diamond that Sirhan’s mother, Mrs. Mary 

Sirhan, and his bother, i-Mnir, might have told defense investigators 
and psycCiaarists ’what they warted to hear’ atout tootootos mental state, 

believnng it would work to his beneeit.

"Did yrU take into considirltien (when you ineerviewed them) 
the Sirhan family’s wilingneess to be. helpful genneaaiy ... to look 

for excuses for his behavior?’ Fitts asked.

' "Diamond said that, to the contrary, he oft^ found the
Sirhans unwwlinng to discuss many elements of their history, particularly 
anything related to Charts father. ’ ■ .

"Fitts pressed the same point. .
"’Don’t you get the impressoon that she (i-irs. Sirhan) was 

laying it on a litte bit when she discussed the horrors of war and 

the effects of the war on her son?’ the prosecutor persisted.

"Diamond protested that suggestion.

"’It is impossible to magnify the torr^s of war,’ he retorted. 
’".definitely do not think Mrs. Sirhan was ’laynng to in.’

more
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. "At this point, the 25-year old defendant glanced anxiously 
at his mother and brother, who were sittnng in second-row seats in the 

courtooom. ■

Fitts produced a transcript of a February 2 meeting between 

Dimond and other psychiaarists and psychologists, and asked him to read 
a portoon. '.

Diamond was quoted in the transcript as stating "the whole 

Sirhan.family alternated between the grossest kind of evasion and decep­

tion and a kind of suggeetible state of tellnng you what you want to 

know." ■ .

The prosecutor asked: "Didn’t you make that staemment?’5

Dimond said h.e had, but that the statement had been taken 
out of context.

The Sirhans were evasive, he said, "only about a particular 
kind of information and certain events."

At this point, Fitts inquired: "If they war's evasive and 

deceptive about one thing, might they not be evasive and deceptive 
about others?" .

Said Diamond: "The answer to that would be obvious, Mr. Fitts, 
if you would only aioow me to tell you what they were deceptive about."

Reported a Los Angeles newspaper (Times):

"After much wrangliig about whether Dimond should be able to

more
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explain that one matter, he managed to say that they wex'e only- evasive 

when discussing the head of the family, Bishara Sirhan.
' . ' "In'another tart exchange, Fitts -charged Dismond was dodging 

his questions about what triggered the shooting at the Ambassador.
"Fitts drew the concession that Diamond beHeved that Sirhan 

in his normal state, even though he was a'paranoid schizophrenic, would 

have been harmless had he not gone into a dissociative state*

. . "’To explain this crime., he said,, ’you have to go back to 

Jerusalem in 1948, when Sirhan was a child and study the whole series 

of events since then.’1 .
Fitts said he accepted this, but asked whether the actual 

shooting had been tr^gered by a disstcittive state brought on by 

drirk:ini and by mirrors and bright lighto in the hotel.
The doc-tor again refused to accept this and remarked, "I 

won't let you put words in my mouth and say I said what I didn’i; say.1'
. "Doctor, I don’t know why you’re dodging me," Fitts said.

In further testimony, Diamond admitted tot Sinhs’ leed o’ 

the witness stand when he denied proSecution witnesses’ testmmony that 
he practiced rapid-firing at a San G-aabiel gun range l^t; June 4.

. Dismond said Sirhan Hed because he feared the truth might
reveal the depth of his emotional iineess.

.Concluded the newspaper (Times) story:

. "Fitts, through several questions, sought to ^ici-t fnom
Diamond an admission that Sinha’ had ’concocted' his story- of the

more —
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assassination to put himself in a favorable light.
"But at that suggeetion, Diamond smiled and said.Wat if 

Sirhan had concocted his story, it was a story ’that couldn’t possibly 

help him. He was wiling to admit he killed Sen. Kennedy, hated him 

and carried out the assassination to prevent him from becoming president 
and keeping the bombers from Israel.’ .

"Fitts then quoted from Diamond's summaim of his own testi­
mony, where Diamond said, ’I agree that this i.s an absurd, preposterous
story, unlikely and incredible.1 ’

"Fitts asked Diamond who he ’agreed’ with. .
-"Diamond smiled again and replied, ’I agree with the public 

and the world.”1

*

more
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THURSDAYS, MARCH 27 — The defense in the Sirhan B. Sirhan trial 

rested its case today and one Los Angeles newspaper (HeraldESxminer) 

predicted "the mater could go Ito the jury within 10 days."
After hearing from 29 witnesses, including seven psychologists and 

psjyjhatrists, Grant B. Cooper, one of three defense attorneys, read, 

for the first time in the jury’s hearing, the transcript of a Fee425 
chamber session in which the defendant accused Superior Judge Herbert V. 

Waaker, who is presiding, of "railooading" him into the gas chamber.

• "Having underscored that blowup, Cooper dared the way for the 
prosecution to begin rebuttal testmony tomorrow,11 noted mother Los 

Angeles newspaper (Times).
Today, two of the prosecution attorneys, John E. Howard and David 

N. Fitts of the Los Angeles County District Attorney’s Office, sought 

unsuccessfully to open rebuttal with a ^-minute c°lor film of Sen. . 

Kennedy’s fprrch l^t June 4, mi^tes be^re he w^ fotlLly shot.

Reported the newspaper:

. "Howard argued that the film would show that Kennedy’s speech 

containednothnng that could be construed as a ’triggering mechanism' 
for the dissociative emotional state in which the defense claims Sirhsm 

kiieed Kennedy. ■ . '

"After strenuous objection foom Cooper that the film was immOtrial, 

Judge Walker concurred, on two gl'otnds: '
"(1) that no one ever clamed Kennedy had said anything Wot night 

that errcieiOteed SiW^’s aieeged trance or even claimed Wot Sirlrnn 
had actually heard We ferrch, and .

more —



"(2) a film of the happy, victorious senator could have an in- 
fammatory effect on the jury outweighing the film's possible value."

As for testimony, Dr. Bernard L. Diamond, psychiatrist, conceded 

that Sir-han's story of iHing; Kennedy Masses the gravest problems of 
credibility- and reads "like a script that would never be acceptable in 
a Class B motion picture. 5- Howeer, Dimond made it clear he beieeves 
it.

• In brief re-direct examination by Emile Zola Berman, another defense 

attorney, Diamond admtted he has termed his psycCialric findings on 

Sirin as "an absurd and preposterous story, unLikely and incredible. 

In my opinion, this is the ultimate absuuddty — too i:LiogicaL, even 

for the theater of the absurd." '

The doctor also said that when he entered the case, he had no idea 
he would ftnd evidence of "voodoo thinking" or "mH-order mysticism" 

and self-hypnosis involved in the slaying of Kennedy.

Reported Dave Simth, Times staff- writer:
"The absuuddty, he said, was that such supeertitoous elements could, 

through the iHilng of Sen. Kennedy, ’affect the destiny of this country 
and the entire world.’

"is Diamond concluded this ita•demdnt, Howard asked, ’Did you just 
read iomedhing?'

i;'Yes,1 said Diamond.

M’yWhen did you write it?’ ’

"’Late las; night,’ Diamond said, ’about midnight.’

"The prosecution has clearly shown, without expressing it verbally,

moire -
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its disaffection for Diamond’s vivid, eloquently worded expressions on 

Sirhan’s mental ilteess, which Diamond has read in court foom prepared 

staeements. •
"Shortly after Diamond, a full professor of law, criminooogy and 

psychiatry at UC Berkeley, was excused foom the stand, it was read into 
the record that he served as the star defense psycciaaric witness without 

fee»” . . .

Also testifyng was Georgene Seward, a USC psychology professor, who 

was called on to evaluate two batteries of psychological tests admin­
istered to the defendant by two previous witnesses, clinical psycho^y 
gists Martin M. Schorr and O. Roderick Richardson.

Dr. Seward said she agr'eed with the two that five difeerent tests 
combined to portray Siphon as a paranoid schizophrenic.

Reported the Times: ' ,

"At one point Dr. Seward said Sirhrt’s reaction to one test indi­
cated the poossiility of ’latent homosexual tendencies.’

"At that point, Sirhrt glaired at the doctor, leaned over to defense 

attorney Russsll Parsons and snapped, ’What kind of a son-of-iithc do 

they think I am?1
"Howard, criss-exrmitino Dr. Seward, atemmpted to dravz foom her,-as 

the prosecution has doggedly tried to do with six previous psychhaaric 
expert’, adimssions that Sirhm’s responses to the tests could be con­

strued as normal for a person in his cicumistances. ’

"But, as with the prior witnesses, Dr. Seward would hothidi that 
one question or another might be open to different intirpritations, but 
that the main direction of m tests, taken together, pointed to’a clear 
case of schisophrenic reaction, paranoid type.’

more
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. "At one point she said that 'any good clinician* would never diagnose 
mental iUesss on tie basis of only one question or even one test, but 
on the total picture. .

"Howard chuckled and said, 'Yes, but a poor lawyer-has to go through 
these tests one at a time.' .

"Dr. Seward admitted that three of the tests administered t;o Sirhan 
have been critciized within the profession, but she defended their use."

• The final witness for We defense was George DeVos of UC Berkeley, 

a psychologist and cultural anthropologist, who testifidd that he also 
examined Schoor’s and Richardson’s tests and arrived at the same di.aglnisis 
of paranoid schizophrenia without knowing they had.

Reported the Times: ' '

"Like Dr. Seward, Dr. DeVos admitted that the Rorschach (Wk-bWt) 

test has been the subject of some critiiisi, bu-t said he didn't doubt its 

validity and added Wat he had nivir ’een a ca’e of anyone succeesffaiy 

faking interpret-atoon’ of the inkblots."
Noted the Herald-Examiner: .
"Nearly 8000 pages of testimony have been taken i.n the case which 

has so far cost Los Angeles County al-most $400,000..' The paper also 
stated that 86 witnesses had been heard by the jury.

Meanwhhie, it was learned that Saidmih Sirhan, 36-year old brother 

of the defendant, was i.n serious iinddtiin i.n a Pasadena haspital after 
being ’truck by a car while crossing a street.

He was X-rayed for possible basal skill fracture and a broken right 
leg. '

mor's —
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The driver was not cited and police said the incident appeared to 
be a normal pedestrian-car accident.

Last July 7, Saidallah Sirhan reported that he was. shot at twice 
on a freeway, but was not inuured. The assailants were never apprehended.

more
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FRIDAY, MARCH 28 — Dr. Seymour Pollack, USC psychiatrist, took the 
stenid today at the trial of Sirhan B. Sirhan "in rebuttal to testimony of 
defense psychologists and psychiaarists that Sirhtg is so mentalltm he 

is inCapabie of ’maturely and meeainggully premeeitating murder,’" ^cord­
ing to a Los Angeles newspaper (Herald-Exam-aier).

PoHtics -- not mental iUeess -- drove Sirh^ to shoot Sen,. Robert 

F. Kennedy, Pollack told the count, stating, 11 ’ consider Sirhan to be 

meenally disturbed. But ’ beieeve his assassination of Sen. Kennedy wa.s 

motivated by pooitical reasons that were highly rmoiionally charged.11
The doctor said he spent about 40 hour's igterveewnng Sirhan and his 

family, and close to 200 hour’s reviewing all materials about the defendant, 

"about 10 timrs,ithe normal amount of time spent in criminal psychiatric 

( igvrstigttiin, related thw newspaper.

! Dr. Pollack said he beloved Sirhan to have a "paranoid personalty," 
| and that he has exaggerated notoons of persecution.

He disagreed with his defense himtemppirrles, however, that Sirhan 
developed his mental il^sss at an early age. Despite thw ^ot that 

Sirhan winnessed the horrors of the 1948 Artb-Isrteri War as a dnild in 
Jerusalem, the doctor said he "incurred less, ^th^ thsm mores onotionl 

disUubb;gccr’, than ia.i many other Arabs.

Continued the newspaper report: .

■"Sirhan’s mother protected him, the psychiatrist explained, and

r"

more
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’except for the fact he was a frigheened child, there was no other 

evidence of peculiar behga'ioo. 1 -

"Sirhan arrived ie the United States at the age of 12, ge said, 

as ’a hopeful, idealistic, well-behaved young m^n. .
"’I found no evidence of paranoia in ^.Wmw during his child and

teen years, 1 he said.': -

Pollack indicated the paranoia began to develop in Sirha^ early 

2O’S, tr^gered by the death of his sister, Ayda, and the arrest of h's 
brother, Si^if, who was charged with tampering with an auto.

Added the newspaper’s story as related by Myrna Olirer, ^ff 

writer: '
"Prior to the esycCliaaristss testmnony, prosecution attorneys called 

haedwwiteng expert Lawrence W. SLo^ to accredit defense claims that 
Sirhan wrote threats on Kennedy’s liee while in a state of elf-h^ro^.

"Sloan said, after comparing the written threats, w ^rha^ diaries 
and ’automatic writing* which Sirhan did. in. -1s cell, after being hypnos 
tied by defense esych-alrist Dr. Berard L. Di^hdK., that ^rhsrn was 
not ’under a state of -y;enooSs, when he scribbled, ’RFK must die, die, 

die.1
"District Attorney's investigator George W Murphy, Los Angeles 

Police Dept. Sgt. Adolph B. Melendres and LAPD Sgt. FeWc J. Patchett, 

who spent several hours with Sirhan after his arrest, were ate called 
to testify that the defendant was sober when he sho-t Kennedy.

more
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"Sirhan’s attorneys, in trying to prove he was in a state of dimi­

nished capacity at the time of the shooting, have said he was self­
hypnotized after his arrest for the June 5 shooting. 'His demeanor was

that of a sober man.11!

Judge Herbert V. Walker today announced that there would be no couut 

session on Monday, March 31, because of the death of former President 
Dwight D. Eisenhower.

Said the judge: ’’Certainly this man (Eisenhower) was one of the 
greatest Americans of our generation. He certainly deserves all the 

respect we can afford him.11 ■ '

4-1-69 ■ '
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WEEKLY SUMMARY #44
Re: The assassination of 
Senator Robert F. Kennedy

Note to editors: Because of the widespread interest 
i.n the assassinatoonuof Senator Robert F. Kennedy in 
Los Angeles on Wednesday, June 5, 1968, and proceedings 
i.n court, the Office of Los Angeles County District 
Attorney Evelle J. Younger i.s publishing a weekly summary 
of the case. This is the 44th summary, and others will 
be for release on subsequent 'Wednesdays.

MONDAY, MARCH 31 — An Associated Presss story published in 

today's editions of a Los Angeles newspaper (Herald-Exeminer) said 

a "three-cell suite is being prepared for Sirhan Bishara Sirhan at 
a state tetocal facility in case hie i.s convicted of murdering Sen. 

Robert F. Kennedy and sentenced to life imprsoomient, a si;lte iffi.cill 
said Sunday.

"Sirhan's large quarters, now being trailed off, will, have a 

kitchln-UOlirg room, a bedroom, a living room and a lavatory wiW shower, 

said Philp D. Guthrie of the CalifOrnil .Adult Authority.
"The cell, which Guthrie said would protect the occupant from 

other prisoners, is at the Cclifornil Medical Facility at Vacaailll,

near Sacramento.11
Sirhan i.s accused of first degree murder in the assassination 

of Kennedy. If the jury convicts him of that charge, it will choose 

between death and life impri somment as the penary, related AP.
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Continued the wire service story:

”If given a lite sentence, Sirhan would be sent to the medical 
facility for ’indefinite confinement — many months or even years,’ 

a standard procedure for prisoners with mental problems, Guthrie said.
if’We’ll need some reading of his fame of mind and we’ll also 

want to assess the reaction of other imamates.’ ,

"Guthrie added that the Caaifornia Adult Authooity is asking 

tin Legislature for special legislator so Sirhan could be held at 

Vaccaille if hie receives the death penalty instead of being sent, as 

state law requires, to Death Row at San Quentin Prison.

"He attributed the request to ’questions brought up about 
Sirhan’s mental ionidtion’ and Sirhan’s ’notoriety.”’

TUESDAY, APRIL 1 — Sirhan B. Sirhan, who is on trial for the 
slaying of Sen. Robert F. Kennedy ’’feew into a rage” today when a pro­

secution psychiatrist in effect called him a liar,11 reported a Los 

Angeles newspaper (Times).

Dr. Seymour Pollack testif’ed that hie didn’t beieeve the defend­

ant "really couldn’t remember writnng in his notebook of his intent to 
kill’’ the senator, related the newspaper..

Continued the news story:

"Pollack said he regarded Sirhan’s claimed amnesia as ’an 
attempt to avoid the serious honslqulnhls that could result if the note­
book was cttributed as evidence of his prlImditction to murder Kennedy.1

more
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"Though Pollack did not use the word 'lie,’ Sirhan quickly 

grasped the import of Pollack's testimony and jumped to his feet, shout­
ing 'Your honor, sir...’’

"Four husky deputies jimmied the tiry Palestinian Arab back into 
his chair as Suppeior Judge Herbert V. Walker warned.: 'You settle down 

or I’ll do what I told you I’d do. ’"

(In February, during another outburst, the judge told Sirhan 
that he would be gagged tni tied in the courtroom if the outbursts con- -, 

tinued.)
Sirhan didn't settle down today, and told RusssU E. Parsons, 

one of three defense lawyers, "I Told the truth and I don’t like him to 
cU. me a liar.’’

The judge called a recess and ordered the jury to retire as 

fTour deputies ushered the defendant out of the hourtroom. During the 
"5-minute r*ecess, Parsons calmed the ruffled defendant, and the trial 
reumied foiowwngg an apology by Parsons on beh^f of his client.

Pollack contnnued that hn beHevesSirhamimi^n’t teingjitthe. truth 
about his lUeged amnesia regarding the notebook writing. In earlier 
testmotny the doctor said he didn’ t beHeve Sirhan. was suffering psychotic 
delusions when he shot the senator.

Me^mwWhll, another Los Angeles newspaper (Henld-Eiaminer) ^IL1- 

ted the foiowwnng:
"Defense lawyer Emile Zoll Berman claims that tike psychhalrist, 

Dr. Seymour Pollack, reported to Dist. Atty. Erelle J. Younger thlt

moire —
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Sirhan was meetally ill -- suffering from paranoid schizophrenia^ Then, 

according to Berman, Dr. Pollack changed his mind and his report.^

"Pollack said he thirds the defendant i.s 'a developing ^paranoid 

persorality, ’ but his diagnosis stopped far short of the testmnony of 

seven defense psychiatrists and psychologists who unanimously diagnosed 

Sirhan as a paranoid schizophrenic,11 reported the Times.

Continued the article:
"Pollack said he felt Siri.ln't mental illeett fell under the 

ciattifCcatrcn described as 'psychosis, non-psychotic.1 He described 
this as a condition in which a person may exhibit psychotic tendencies 

in a clinical tbntb.

"Alhhough he said Sirhan showed paranoid tendencies, Pollack 
said he found no evidence of paranoid delusions or of organic brain 

damage — which the defense has never clamied — nor had he found evi­

dence of 'pecdiarity' in Sirhan's sexual fantasees or of 'bizarre 

thinking' in his attitude towards (former) President Johnson, former 
U.N. Ambassador Arthur Goldberg or Sen. Kennedy.

"In his notebook, Sirhan had written over and over about two 

girls he had known slightly, and he also wrote of his desire to issis- 

sinte (former) President Johnson and Goldberg as well as Kennedy.

"Pollack said Sirhan’s feelings toward these people were not 
Ublusionlry, but based on poJ-iticai Uisilluriombbi.t and a resentment 
of what he behoved was hyporcrt.icai in American policy toward the 
Palestinian Arabs and the Israelis."

more —
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Sirhan regarded Kennedy's activitees as a sellout to American 

Zionists whose votes he needed, and "with this attiUude toward Kennedy 

in mind, Pollack said., Sirhan didn't beleeve he should be punished for 
kilUng such a person, because the kilUg was pooitically motivated 

and justiiedd, in Sirhan's view,11 reported the Times.

Continued the newspaper*:

"I don't beleeve Sirhan expected to be caught,’ Pollack said 
’’Pollack said Sirhan has shown no remorse for kiliig Kennedy 

but that Sirhan has had 'some conniict' about the idea oi kilinng another 
human being. It is his belief that Kennedy betrayed the Arabs, Pollack

indicated, that enabled him to feel no remorse for his act.

"Pollack conceded that Sirhan’s damned amnesia could also 
be a retrogaade amnesia rather than a deliberate lie. Retrograde amnesia, 

he said!, is a form of amnesia that develops after an event, when a person 

cannot bear to face knowledge of what has happened.

"Pollack said he also believes Sirhan's account of his activi- 

tees up to the tmae of the kilUng, with one exception. ’I believe,’
said Pollack, 'that he went to the Ambassador Hotel with the conscious

intention of kilUng Kennedy.

"The psychiatrist also conceded that ’it is probable that 
Sirhan had a few drinks’ the night of June 4, at political victory 
parties at the hotel. The defense claims Sirian,s shooting of Kennedy 

was done in a dissociative tannoe partly induced by drunkenness.

more —
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"Pollack said he thirds the possibility that Sirhan might have been in 
a dissociative state sr self-induced hypnotic trance when he shst 
Kennedy is 'exteemely remote.’ He said Sirhan ’kiieed Kennedy because 

he hated him fsr what he stood fsr’ and because Sirhan wanted, ts call 

attention to the plight of his people.

"In answer to questions by Dep. Dist. Atty. John E. Howard, 

Pollack said he believes Sirhan was not suffernng diminished mehtal 
capacity at the tme of the shooting, but was quite able to har^r malice 
afbrethought, form the intent to kill and reflect on the consequences,” 

concluded the article.
Meeawhhle, another Los Angeles newspaper (Herald-Exminer) re­

ported that "the defense suffered a major blow in Dr. Pollack’s testimony.
"The defense contends that Sirhan’s mental cappbblity is so 

badly impaired that he lacked the abblity either to premeddtate Kennedy’s 

fatal shooting or to comprehend the gravity of his act.

i}If the jury of seven men and five women credit the defense 

theory, Sirhan probably will be spared the death pensaty. If th^ jurc 
Sleeve Pollack, the diminutive Jordanian immigrant could face the gas 

chamber.”

WEDNESDAY, APRIL 2 -- Value of psychological testing and 

psychiatric terminology "came under attack" today in the Sirhan murder 

trial "as the ddfensd launched what it promises will be a harrowing 

cross-examination" of the prosecution’s psychiatric witness, reported 
a Los Angeles newspaper (Times.)

his the a — o- tie wi■S•eis stard tow-ay, th* ■ramcu
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In his third day on the witness stand today, the witness, 
Dr. Seymour Pollack, said he did not believe, as the defense has con­

tended, that Sirhan was in a dissociatiee state or hypnotic tmce when 

he shot and killed Sen. Robert F. Kennedy.

Agreeing that Sirhan is mennally ill, the doctor "steadfastly 

avoided terming him a paranoid schizophrenic, as seven previous psychia­
trists and psychologists have called the dlflnddaa,’< said the newspaper..

Another Los Angeles newspaper (Herald-Hamner) reported that 
Grant B. Cooper, one of Sirhan’s attorneys, chalnageed an halier state­
ment by Pollack that the defendant was only slightly meenally ill.

Cooper read "the psychiaarist’s Feb. 5 report to Dist. Atty.
Evelle J. Younger, i.n which he described Sirhan as ’psychotic.’

"The report said in part;, ’...In my opinion the killing of Sen. 

Kennedy was a poetical assassination by a psychiOically disUrbeed 
defended. ’

"Dr. Pollock told the court, however, that he meant Sirhan ---- 
’psychotic' not 'clinically psychGoic.'

"The psychiiarist said a psychotic was a person suffernng foom 

psychosis,1 a term used by me in the broad sense meaning that an indi­
vidual may have within a long contnnuimi a mild or iinmmma to severe 

degrees of personaaity disorganization.’

"’Cinnically psychc>oic,» he said, meant 'clinical evidence — 

something you can see or feel or interpret -- of mnimmmi to major

c^lle
more —
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evidences of mental impairment. '

"Jousting with Cooper over semsainics, Dr. Pollack indicated a 

person could suffer minor ’psychotic’ symptoms and still be able to 

plot a murder, but that those mror symptoms would not make him. ’clini­

cally’ or meaaurahly psychotic.
"Dr. Pollack also admitted, prodded by Cooper’s questions, Wat 

it is ’possible* that Sirhan would have demonntrated greater psychosis 

if hie had had more time to examine him."
Pollack said that he had spent about 25 hour's with the defendant

between last June and Feb. 1, "and admitted that he later wrote Wat
longer sessions would ’probably’ uncover more serious signs of psychooss,11 
related another Los Angeles newspaper (Times).

Continued the newspaper*:

" This defendant i.s on trial for his Ife, ’ Cooper interrupted 
’If you felt it was probable Wat you would find. signs of psychosis, d°n’ic 

you Wink you should have asked for more tmie wiW him?’

"Pollack, obviously angry, replied Wat We Wief defense 

psychOatt•ist,'Dr. Bernard L. Diamond, had hecome ^angry and r^eirtfiu’ 

at Pollack’s relucaance to divulge his conclusions" at a Feb. 2 gather­

ing of psyyhOatrists and psychologist a’d Wat he had WereWre ’ot 
sought further meetings wiW the defendant.

Reported another Los Angeles newspaper (Herald-EXaminer):

more —
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5Cooper sought further iso discredit Dr. Pollack’s diagnosis of 
Sirhan by questioning the interviews with witnesses of the shooting on 

which much of it was based.

"Dr. Pollack admitted that the lay witnesses, themselves in­
volved in an emotional situation, ’could easily miss the diagnosis of 
psychosis...unless they had had special training.'

"He also conceded that equally quaaifeed psycthaarists could, 
look at the same symptoms in a patient and draw difeeeent inferences 
from them, but insiseed, 'our infeeences are genneaaiy more than less 

likely alike.'

"Dr. Pollack said he gave less weight’ Iso psychological test 
results than to personal intewiews with Sirhan and others because the 
'total picture’ did not bear out what the tests indicated.

"He said he felt Sirhan's Arab background, may have inluenn^ed 
his responses to the tests, causing exaggerated results of psychotic 

signs."
Meanwhile, a Los Angeles newspaper (Times) today fered addi- 

toonal information on facilitees being planned for possible use by Sirhan, 

"if and when." he reaches the California Medical Faaciity for priooners at 

Vacc-avne.

Reported John KennaH, staff witer:
"He (Sirhan) will be under the direct supervisoon of a guard 

24 hours a day and his meals will be prepared individually, probably by

more —
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a guard.
"Prison officials are afraid the little 25-year old Palestinian 

Arab might be kiUed if he were to mingle with other prisoners.

1 ’We have unconfrrmed grapevine reports that there are imates 

that would want to kill hir,1 said Phil Guthrie, information officer 
for the State Department of Correctoons in Sacr^ento.

"’Probably we have never had a more notorious case, if we get 
him. We have an obligatoon to keep people i.n, bu-t we have an equal 

obligatoon to protect them.•"

Guthrie, related the newspaper,, "disputed that Sirhan was to 
receive a red carpet treatment.

more —
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THURSDAY, APRIL 3 -- In his flourish day on the witness stand, 

Dr. Seymour Pollack, prosecution psychiatrist, said today "that when 

he wrote his first diagnosis of Sirhan B. Sirhan, he thought Sirhan 
would never be tried for the kiliing of Robert F. Kennedy,11 according 
to a story in a Los Angeles newspaper (Times). >

The newspaper related that Pollack wrote a "confidential" re­
port on Feb. 5 to Dist. Atty. Evelle J. Younger in which he described 
the defendant as a "psychotic...suffernng from a borderline schizo­
phrenia with paranoid and hysterical features."

The report was writeen after a Feb. 2 meeting between Pollack 
and psychiatric and psychological consultants to tte difinsi who agreed 
that Sirhan was meetta.ly ill.

Said the newspaper:

"On the basis of that meeting, the defense and prosecution 
agreed to a plea of gulty to fisttdeggree murder ^^ liLife imprison­
ment. But after Supeeior Judge Herbert V. Waaker rejected tte agreement 

and ordered the trial to proceed before a jury, defense attorney Grant 
? Cooper charged Thursday, Pollack wrote another report, in ^^^ 
Sirhan’s mental iineess was described less boldly..

"In a 30-pagi report dated March 21, after the trial was already 
2£ months along, Pollack termed Sirhan ’a developing paranoid personalty. ”’ 

Today, Cooper asked the doctor if he hadn't believed on Feb. 5 

that Sirhan would never come to trial, and Pollack replied: "I was led to 

believe that, yes."

more —
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Cooper also asked Pollack if he hadn’t also beleeved that the 
Feb. 5 report would never have reached the defense, and Pollack denied 

this. He said he knew it would have been entered in testimony if the 
case had come to trial.

The defense attonney then asked why Pollack’p March 21 report 

did not team Sirhan a psychotic, and Pollack repleed that he had intnnded 

only too discuss Sirhan's motive in killiig Kennedy, not hi.s mental state 
when he did it.

Pollack insiseed today, "I have said a.1 along (in direct 
testimony) that I considered the defendant a borderline schizophrenic.11

Continued the newsppaee-story:
"Cooper chaiennged Pollack, tasisttag he had never used taat 

term on direct examination by the prosecution, and Pollack agreed he 

may not have.

"Pollack insiseed that he stood by the diagnoses ta both hta 

first and second reports and insistad they were not conflicttag.

"He denied implicatoons that he had sought ta m’taize his 
eaalier fnidingss, in which agreement with dtfenpt arguments o’ Sirta’s 

mental conddtion seemed more apparent.

"There were several heated exchanges as Cooper and Pollack 

parried for points in what esssentaaiy was a ptmianic argument. Pollack 

explained time and again that psychiatric 'labels’ ta c°ut cases are 

often misleading.

more —
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"Cooper returned to a previous staeement of Pollack’s that if 
he had had more than 25 hours with Sirhan he might have unearthed more 
definite signs of psychosis, but that on the basis of that limbed time, 
he had not found strong symptoms.

"Citing Sirhan's alleged delusions of persecution and his 
fantasies of destructac and death, mostly to Jews, Cooper asked if 
Pollack might not have seen these delusions if he had spent mon Wie on 

the case.
"Pollack, obviously fluseeeed, admtted ’If this is a criiicism, 

I accept the criiccimi.8
"Noting that several psychological tests had unearthed such 

delusionary thinking,, Cooper asked if perhaps the tests hadn’t got farther 
beneath Sirhan's surface "than Pollack had.

"Pollack, his voice rising to a shout, said they might have, 

but only 'as they applied to psychological mateeial, not as they applied 
to realty. ’

"He explained that tests showed what Sirhan's inner reality 
was like, but that he judged Sirhan's mental state on the basis of his 
outward behhaioo."

The newspaper noted that Pollack said Sirhan beHeved it was 

good and right for him to kill Kennedy because of Kennedy's support for 
Israel. Cooper asked if this waan't delusional thiiiiing, and the psych­
iatrist said it wasn’t;.

I
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Added the newspaper*:

"One key point in much of Pollack's testimony was his conten­
tion that Sirhan had shown no outward symptoms of psychosis. Sirhan's 

notebook writings of his intent to kill Kennedy, his mystictl experiments 

with RosicIUlcanniim and his violently anti-Zionist pooitical views, 
Pollack said, were not by themselves, considered separately, symptomtic 

of psychosis.
"Cooper made it obvious that he felt these matters should not 

be dismissed one by one as ulsymptomitic, but considered together, i.n 
light of psychological tests to which Pollack said he also gave less weight 
than eyewitnesses’ descriptoons of Sirhan’s outward behavior.

'With obvious anger, Cooper asked Pollack, 'Could the killing 
of Sen, Kennedy be considered a symptom of paranoid schizophrenia?’

"After a long pause, Pollack said, 'Yes, it could.’ He began 

to amplify his answer but Cooper cut him short.

"Testmiony ended Thursday on a dramatic high point as Cooper 

declaimed from Pollack's Feb. 5 report: ’I beieeve that Sirhan's mental 

iinness was related to his act of assassination in that his paranoid con- 
vicUons wont beyond those of a normal personnaity i.n the average citieen.

’’’This mental illesss should be considered a subsssainiai miti­

gating factor on the issue of penaaty.’

''Cooper skipped one portion for brief questioning of Pollack, 
then, went back, minutes before adjournment, to read the omitted pontoon:

more —
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’’’Should a conviction of murder of the first-eggeee be obtained, 
I hope that Sirhani. ir able to avoid the death panalty and ir rent for 
treatment to the Californa MedicO. Facility at Vacaaille. ’

"Pollack acknowledged that, 'ar you know, ’ am strongly opposed 

to capital punislment for moral and etJoical reasons.’’’

Another Lor Angeles newspaper (Herald-Examiner) reported that 
"a new picture of Sirhan in the days immedately fllOowing Kennedy'r 

fatal shooting also emerged."

The newspaper was referring to a report of Dr. Marcus Crahan, 

County Jail physician,, who examined the defendant on June 6 and 7.

Crahan wrote the fllOownng, which was read into the record, 
according to the newspaper:

"(i-iy) interveews revealed an unconcerned young male... entirely 

pleased with himseef...showing no remorse, no regret."
Crahan raid he found Sirhan, whom defense psychiatrist i^tt 

was suffering from acute mental iinnrss at the time, "alert, wary, im­

passive, unconcerned and well directed.11
At the time, according to Crahan, SLi^to believed Kennedy ’’ill 

lived...that the shots had not been fatal.
Then an attorney virieed the young Arob and tld Mm o" Kennedy’ 

death. After this, according to Crahan:

"Sirhan appeared exhausted and comilained hie had had no sleep... 
His attorney had no doubt told him his victim had expired. This may have 
aaalunted for hir exhaustion.i;

The same newspaper indicated Sirhai told Pollack he believed he 
should receive a sentence of a couple of years" for Kennedy’s murder.

"He felt that was all the act deserved, if anything," the prych- 
trist said.

moire —



Weekly Summary #44 '
Page 16

FRIDAY, APRIL 4 -- Dr. Seymour Pollack, psychiatrist for 
the prosecution in tie Sirhan B. Sirhan case today said tie defendant 

told him several times that "he was through with the whole damned thing. 

He was througi with psychiatrisss bugging him and hie wanted rut. He 

wanted to plead guilty."

Pollack related that these incidents, like similar outbursts 
after the murder trial began, were "temper tantrmns in a paranoid 

individual.11

The doctor told the jury hie did not believe Sirhan was faking 

the tantumas.
Reported a Los Angeles newspaper (Times) on today’s session:
"In final cross-examination, defense attorney Grant B. Cooper 

asked Pollack if hi felt Sirhan had shown inappropraaee responses for 
a man in his cicuimistacces — overracting, smiling at serious moments 

and paying little attentoon as the possibblity of a death penalty was 

discussed.
"Pollack said he had not seen ’he degree of inappropriaee 

response we see i.n a psychotic person,’ but said Sirhan’s responses 
were more ’impulsive and volatile’ than those of a normal person on 

trial for his lHe. ’I suspect he wishes he could control himseif better,’ 

Pollack said."

Pollack said he had seen a lot of the defendant and confided, 
”I have actually gotten somewhat to Ike Sirhan. He may still think 
I’m an s.o.b."

more —
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In further questioning, Cooper asked if Pollack still 

believed that alhhough Sirhan i.s meensuLly ill, his iHesss was not so 

severe as to diminish his mental capacity to maUurely and meea.inngully 
premeditate Kennedy’s death.

Reported the Times:

"Pollack repleed that h.e did beieeve it 'with reasonable 

medical certainty.1
"Cooper asked if he believed if 'beyond reasonable doubt' — 

a condition on which a first degree murder conviction must be based.

"Pollack said he regarded 'beyond reasonable doubt' as a moral 

jud^ent which he, as a doctor, did not feel qualifeed to make.

'Reasonable medical certainty,' he said, i.s a medical judgment which 

does not equate with the moral concept.

"Under redirect examination by Dep. Dist. Atty. John E. Howard, 
Pollack read at length from the transcript of a Feb. 2 meeting between 

psychiatrisss and psychologists for both the defense and prosecution.
"It was after this meeting, at which there was general agree­

ment that Sirhan was meetally ill and to so>me degree, that the defense 

and prosecution agreed to change Sirhan's plea to guilty, with an 

unierstlnLdtng that he would be sentenced: to fe in prison.

"However, the agreement fell through and the plea remained not 

guilty.
"The transcript of the meeting revealed a sharp dispute between 

Pollack and defense psyechaarist Bernard L. Diamond, who expr’essed

more —
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irritation at Pollack for not revealing his conclusions about Sirhan's 

mental state,"

Yesterday, Pollack contended that Diamond had given him to 

understand hie could have no further interveews with the defendant after 
his last interveee on Feb. 1.

However, the newspaper pointed out:
"...the transcript showed ii was Pollack who first suggested 

that it would be of little further value for him to see Sirhan agarin. 
On Thursday, Pollack had testified that if he had had more than 25 hour’s 

with Sirhan, he might have seen clearer evidence of Sirhan's aUeged 

psychotic symptoms.

"Diamond, on Feb. 2, told Pollack, ’I do not feel., Seymour, 

that you have played fair.' Diamond said Pollack had 'evaded' and 

1 quibbled' wh.le defense psychiaarists and psychologists had made full 

disclosures, and said Pollack had 'misused the conference' by holding 
back his opinions.

"Pollack insisted, at that meeting and in his testimony this 
week, thar at that tme he had not come to any conclusions. 1

"But he confined that two days after the meeting, on Feb. 4, 

^^ dictated an 18-page diagnosis in a confidential memo to the district 
attorney’s office.

"At that time, Pollack confr.meed Thursday, hie had not thought 
the case would come to trial. But after Supprior Judge Herbert V. Walker 
ordered the trial to proceed before a jury, Pollack wrote another report 
on March 21.’’

JUL##
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ADDITION TO WEEKLY SUMMARY #44 
Re: The assassination of 
Senator Robert F. Kennedy

WEDNESDAY, APRIL 2 - The cost of the Sirica trial t° date is 
well in excess of $850,000, according to a reports a Los Angeles legaL 

newspaper (Daily Journal,) quo-ting Suppevisor Kenneth Hahn.

He said, "this undoubtedly is the tost expensive trial in Los 

Angeles County history and certainly will cost $1 million bafore it is 

ended. Any appeals will add to the expense." ■
Hahn broke down the cost as foiowws: county,, through Feb. 28, 

$449,767; estimated county costs for Maroh, $50,000; additional Sheeiff’s 

Department costs not audited, $100,00; estimated Pasadena Police Depart­

ment costs, $50,000; and Los Angeles Police Dpjarttent, $208,829.

Continued the official:
*’Alhhough it is unfortunate the people of Los Angeles County 

— to pay for the expenses of the case, the inia1 ±s worth every p— 
"If it reveals the truth cf what happened that night last June, 

.f it guarantees Sir-han Sirhan justice, to wh° ^n say the cost is not 

3ustifeed.w
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After 10 i.t.

WEEKLY SUMMARY #45
Re: The assassination of 
Senator Robert F. Kennedy

Note to editors: Because of the widespread interest in 
the assassination of Seraator Robert F. Kennedy in Los 
Angeles on Wecdnesday, Junie 5, 1968, and proceedings, in 
court, the Office of Los Angeles County District .Attorney 
Emelle J. Younger Ils publishing a weekly summary of the 
case. This is the 45th summary, and others will be for 
release on subsequent Wecdnesdays.

MONDAY, APRIL 7 — Dr. Leonard B. Olinger, instructor in
abnormal psychology at USC, said. today in. court that lie disagrees with 

two previous clinical psychooooists’ diagnosis of Sirhin B. Sirhin is 

i paranoid psychotic with schizophrenic ruction.
According to one Los Angeles newspaper >(Herald-E5^inlnr),

Olinger "believes Sirhin is not seriously tennally ill. So concerned 

did he become by claims of defense alienists that the young Arab does 

suffer* serious mental impairment, he volum-teemd his services to Dep. 

Dist. Atty. John Howard.”
Continued the/newspaper:
”As Dr. Olinger sees Sirhin:
"He is...relatively intact...hardly impaired, gifeed in certain

imaginative ways, capable of seeing the overveww, proceeding in a highly 

organized method, giving i harmonious kind of perfominice.

more
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’”...There is an indication that there is some measure of 
control over emoOions, good abblity to make judgments, even if these 

dO not correspond to the judgments of other people, remarkably little 

distortoon of the maaeeial or of the individual's perception of the 
outside world...Despite his fundamental difeerences in political views, 

he holds to them on the basis of ideas, notions and value systems that 

are important to him.. .There are some indices of character disorder. 

Most indices are of neurosis.. .uspeuWLly hysteria and lbsessivr conmpl- 

si.on. There are few indices of schizophrenia (divdeed pl^sooelity). ’
"Asked to pin a speecfic label on Sirhan, Dr. Olinger summed 

up, 'He would be a borderinee schizophrenia with principally neuotic 

fratures...sufflreng from pseudo-neuuotic schizophrenia.
"Howard then asked the psychologist f on June 5, 1968, when 

Sirhen admittedly shot Kennedy at the Ambassador Hotel, he had the 
cappablity to ,meu.nenegully end maturely premeditate and rerey out tM 

kbling. ’

"Dr. Olinger replied:
"’he (psychological) tests strongly suggest that he could.;i 
In a report bn another Los Angel.es newspaper (Times), flinger 

told the jury he beieeved that the two previous clnical psychologists, 
Drs. Matin M. Schorr and O. Roderick Richardson, approached Sirhan with 
preconceived notions of what they should fnnd, knowing t^ wueu toting 

the man who kiUed Keenudy. He also indicated the pair "subsequently
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interpreeed test data in light of their expectations,’1 said the newspaper*. 
Continued the article;
"In disputing Schorr’s diagnosis, Olinger said Sirhan was not 

showing paranoid tendencies but common sense when he gave affrrmative 
answers to these true-false statements:

«’I know who is responsible for my trouble. *

” ’I am sure I am being talked abooU. ’

’”I have been in trouble with the law.'
'”1 have enemies who wish to harm me. ’

’” I tend to be on guard around people who are freendlier than
I expect them to be.1

''I feel uneasy indoors.’

"As Sirhan had been jaieed since June 5, Olinger said, his 
positive answers to all these indicated that he ’had good contact with 
reality’ and that his suspicions weren’t paranoid but all too true.”

(The Los Angal.es Herald-Examiner noted that Olinger "added that 
it was his beeief that neither Dr. Schorr nor Dr. Richardson had given 
sufficient weight to the fact that Sirhan has been jaieed for several 
months and faces a capital murder charge in evaluating his tests.

(’’Sirhan has not seen the sun, nor the outdoors since early 

last June when he was transferred from the County Central Jail to an 

isolation cell in the Hall of Justice.")
' Continued the Times report:
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"...the effect of Olinger’s testimony on the jury, while 

difficult to determine exactly, was hardly-galvanizing. For mor’s than, 
a month they have ISttneed to such psycihLatric verbal shorthand as ‘C- 

prime response,’ ’small animal movement,’ ’incnLimate movtmont,’ ’larg-e 
human movement,' ’pure form response,’ ’aarge M and sm-l fm, ’ ’aagge F

and little o’ and ’TH column.’

"It is debatable how efficiently the jurors have bttn able to 
translate such arbitrary terms in their meaanngful emotional equivalents. 

But the mere effort has exacted a toll that was apparent Monday as they 

isse^ed to ssill more of the same with faces that ranged a gamut of 

expression from boredom to stupefaction.

’’Olinger enunciated what he teomed the 10 basic preca^trois to 

be observed in l&oinisString psychological tests — -two of which, he made 

clear, he felt Schorr and Richardson had violated.

"These were 'd law of plgsmr>iy, or Occsm’s Razor' — giving 

the simplest, most factual intlrprltltOoi of data — and the pr?oiIuS^ 
FU^cy.’ This last derives from Greek mythology, in which the robber 
Procrustes thrust his victons into a bed and then strecched the short crus 
to fit the bed or lopped off the tall ones at the head or knees.

"Ripples of amusement alternated with mutters of confusion Ln. -ci 
ccurtrroo as ttstOmy translated into talk of how this or that interpre­
tation was ’fSSled for a Prrirustean bed.1

"Sirhsm, meanwhile, seemed frankly disinee.eestdd for most of 
the day."

In ircss-txlminaticn by Grant B. Cooper, defense attomy, 
Olinger said he contacted the Dissrict Attorney's Office ond offered irn- 
sulSltCoi.. ,

Later, Ohitf Dep. Dist. Atty. Lynn D. Compton "told reporters 
that Olinger had not wanted to testify, but later agreed after he had 
txamin.td the defense consuLtants’ test results,11 reported the Tl01^

more —
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TUESDAY, APRIL 8 -- Both the prosecution and defense rested 
today in the trial of Sirhan B. Sirhan, the accused assassin of Sen. 

Robert F. Kennedy, as the lienal prosecution witness, Leonard B. Olinger, 
psychologist, completed testifynng.

As Olinger, the 90th witness, spoke, Sirhan, according to a 

Los Angeles newspaper (Times) "betrayed not a fliker of interest as 

defense counsel Grant B. Cooper fnnSihed cross-examination.”
The newspaper added that Olinger was the last of 10 psychologists 

and psychiatrists to testify and his ’’opinion ditfered sharply not only 
with the eight expert witnesses for the defense but also with the pro­
secution's star witness, peyciiatriet Seymour Pollack.

Related the newspaper;

’’Defense testimony painted Sirhan as a paranoid psychotic .
with schizophrenic reaction, unaware of and unable t;o control his actions 

when he shoot Kennedy last June. 5.

"Pollack termed Sirhan a paranoid personalty with a borderline 
schizophrenia but held that his mental iineess did not reduce* his capacity 
to maturely and meennnnguLly premeedtate and carry out murder.

’’Olinger, while agreeing with Pollack that Sirhan was not a 

victim of diminished capacity iLn his planning of Kennedy’s death, diagnosed 

Sirhan as a 'pseudo-newrotic ei:h.zo]Phehnc ’ — which he said is not a 
recognized clinical lab^ for real psychosis but a mere descriptive tern 

for a conddtion much less serious than even Pollack had found.
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’’Olinger flushed frequently under a blistering cross-examination 
by Cooper, who sought to draw an admission that Olinger solicieed his 
way into the case only last month.

"Olinger said hie telephoned the prosecution shootly after 
psychologist Martin M. Schorr began testimony. Olinger said he dis­
agreed With inlelinces in Schoor’s testimony he had read in the newspapers.

"Citing Olinger's own testimony Monday about the care psychol- 
oggsts must take in interereting clinical tests, Cooper asked if Olinger 
ha<dnt violaeed his own precautions in forming attUddes about the Sirhan 
case on the basis of n.lwspaelr accounts. OliLnger said he hadn’t.

"Citing Olinger's testimony that Schorr and other psychologists, 
knowing whose tests they were evrllrtng, might have interpreeed the tests 
in a way that mtched their preconceived notions about Sirhan, Cooper 

then asked Olinger if.he hadn't also known in advance whose tests hie 

was inltlrerltng and whether he hadn't been slightly infllinled by that 
knowledge.

"’Some,1 said Olinger.

"Cooper also launched an oblique attack on Olinger's professional 

quarifCcatSins as compared to those of defense witnesses, two of whom, 

Cooper noted, were professors of psychiatry at USC and UC Berkeley.
Olinger is a pat-time instructor in abnormal psychology in USC’s extension 
divisoon.

5Csseer asked repeatedly why Olinger had ehsnld the prosecution 
raher than the defense, and Olinger replied, "I beHeved I could be of 

help. 1

more —
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"’Not to the defense,’ Cooper interjected.
"Not particularly to the defense,’ Olinger said.
’To the prosecution?’ Cooper asM.
NOt particularly to the prosecution,' said Olinger.

"’Then whom did you believe you could help? ’ Cooper asked.

”1 thought I could help justice,’ Olinger repieed.
’"In giving information to the prosecution?’ asked Cooper.
’"In this case, yes,’ Olinger said."
The newspaper noted that ’’Olinger's appearance was tlie capstone 

of more than a month's obscure, technical psychiatric jargon, in which 

both the defense and the prosecution, waged a hot war of psychiatric 

attriiinn.

"The defense sought to command the jury's respect for tteir 

case by stunning them with expert witnesses of both solid and/or glitter­
ing reputation and with no fewer than six clinical psychologists who 

corroborated and confi-med yet again the findings of the otters.
The prosecution chose, with its two experts, to try to teflate 

the defense theories with sober, logical iutlines of verifiable feet. 

In cross-examination of defense experts they incted. painstakingly, some- 

tmnes madddeingly, over and over tte same tiny technical points.

"The stated aim was to find and enlarge weak spots fe tte

ornate psychiatric facade er,ected by the defense.
"But the mor’S likely aim appeared to be to thoroughly sicken 

the jury on all psychiatric testimony, pushing jurors from confesiem

more —



Weekly Summary #45
Page 8

•through boredom and to such exasperation that they might wave aside 

0.1 expert testimony and weigh: the casse solely on these facts:
"That Sirhan hated Zionism and its aliees, wrote of his 

intention to kill Kennedy, did so and i.sn’t sorry.

"As the prosecution prepared its final arguments, Chief Dep. 

Dist. Atty. Lynn D. Compton confrmeed what has been common knowledge 

since early February -- that the prosecution will not press for -the 
death penalty for Sirhan. Nor will they ask the jury not to impose it.I!

Today’s session in court took place only i.n thie morning, die to 

an inchhambers meeting on Judge Herbert V. Walker’s instructoons to 

the jury.
Reported a Los Angeles newspaper (Herald-Exuinnr):

"Dist Atty. John B. Howard said that part of thie delay was 

caused by procedural matters and part by a disagreement over proposed 

instructonss to the jury.
"Wh.le neither side would comment on the disagreement, there 

were authooitative reports that the two sides were split as to the fnne 

details of the law of ’drminshhed capaacty’ in Caaifornia. The defense 

of diminished capacity is thie core of Sirhan’s' case.

"The law provides, i.n effect, that if thie jury beieeves Sirhan 
lacks thie mental capacity to ’oeeanin;gully and maaturely’ lrrooritlte 
and carry out Sen. Kennedy’s kilinng, he cannot be sentenced to death 

— even though he admits the slaying. A battery of defense and pro-
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section psychologists and psychiaarists have said he lacks this 
capacity. Dr. Olinger and psychiaarist Dr. Seymour Pollack have testifeed 
that in their opinion, h.e does have this capacity.

"Guided by the law as it is given them by Judge Walker, the 
jury will make the final decision.

"Judge Walker has been at work on hi.s instructoons to the jury 
for the past several weeks. However, each si.de has the right to offer 
additional suggestions to the jurist at the close of the case,

"Lawyers’ summations and Judge Walker's instructoons are expected 

to take the remainder of this week. It is now expected the jury will get
the case Monday.

WEDNESDAY, APRIL 9 — Sirhan B. Sirloin is beiLng depicted on 

poster’s distributed by the Palestine Liberation Orgsanzation "as a heroic 
Arab commando," ahClr’dOng to William Tuohy, Beirut correspondent for a 

Los Angeles newspaper (Times), it was reported today.
"Circulatoon of the posters," wrote Tuohy, "adapting Sirhan as 

a member of the Palestinian cause, i.s the most signifhccnt development in 

the Arab reaction to the Sirhan trial, sources here (Beirut) say.

"The trial has been vwidely reported in the Arab press and 

follwwed closely.

"However, because of a decision by Arab governments to adopt a 

hands-off policy on the Sirhan case, very little editorial comment has 

been made about the trial.

"One of the few occasions when Arab editorialists complained 

came when psycWatric testmoony at the trial suggested Sirhan had WIM

more —
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Kennedy wMle meetally deranged. 

ssirani is not a madman,’ argued one editor. 
"’There has bern an awful lot of testimony at the trial in

Los Angeles about Sirhan's santy,’ says one veteran Arab affairs 
speeiaaist here (Beerut), 'but if you go into one of those Palestinian, 
refugee camps in Jordan, you will find a lot of people with the seme 

mental makeup as Sirhan.’

"The commandos hope, in their widely distributed posters, to 
capitalize on the extreMst view that Sirhan was acting rationally on 

behalf of the Palestinian guerillas — to wipe out a hated enemy"

In court today, the prosecution in the Sirhan B. Sirhan case 

conceded that the accused assassin of Sen. Robert F. Kennedy is sick, 
"but not so sick that he could not plan, cody, carefully and for a long 

tme to murder” the senator, a Los Angeles newspaper (Times) reported.

"Opening the sumnmaion of the prosecution's casse against the 
25-year old defendant, Dep. Dist. Atty. David N. Fitts told the jury 
of five women and seven men:

’’’The state will urge you to return a verdict of murder in the 
first degree.’

"In an impressive four-hour summmaion delivered rniirrly without 

notes, Fitts waved aside isyc]h.ltric theory and marshaled an imposing 

chronology leading up to the June 5 shooting of Kennedy on the eve of 
his victory in Caaifoanil's Democcatic presidenniai primary.

more —
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"As hie piled up the facts one by one, Fitts said they showed 

a consistent, developig premeedtatoon to murder Keme^."

At one point, reported the newspaper, Sirhan erupted with 
"He’s lying, he's lynng, he's lying," as Fitts said the defendant delib­
erately left his wallet in his car "to avoid identifCcatoon" after the 
Ambassador Hotel shooting.

Defense counsel and security offCcers plopped Sirhan back into 
his chair, quieted him and then ushered him out. Ater cooling off in 
an adjacent room for 20 minutes, Sirhan came back to the court room and 

Isttened quietly but intently as Fitts continued the sumnation, the s^e 

newspaper relaeed. ,

Another Los Angeles newspaper (Herald-Examiner) published high­

lights of Fitts’ sumumaion as follows:

"This trial commenced on Jan. 7. We have now passed the tiir^- 
month lnnvtrslry<> We have heard the ttstamony of some 90 witn^^s* 
But I suggest to you that for the last three we have departed in soma 

measure from the basic pre;mi.se of this trial — murder.

"Murder, and I’ll read it, i.s the unlawful killeng of a human 

being with malice aforethought.
"Malice may be either expressed or implied. It is expressed 

when the kili.ng i.s done outright. It is implied when the kilinng results
from an action involved with wanton disregard for human lfee.

more —
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"I suggest what we are dealing with in this case its expressed 

malice."

Fitts then related what took place on June 5 it the Ambassador 
Hotel.

Continued the sumnmlion by Fitts is related in the newspaper*: 

"Malice -- lets go back to that word. It its expressed when 

there is manifest intent unLawfiULly to kill a human being. We have an 

individual recognizing his target, rapidly approaching the target and 

firng eight shots.
"Wiat could be clearer than that?

"What you will be concerned with is whether this individual 

could know that this was a wrong thing. Malice in this way implies the
doing of something not socially acceptable, the doing of souething wrong.

• "You wll be concerned with whether or not this defendant at 
that time was able to appreciate that firnng bullets into the head of 
another individual is a thing not geneeaUy approved of in our comnuunty.

"Did he know if that was a good thing to do, or a bad thing to do? 

It is no more complicated than that.

"The state has asked and will continue to ask that you return 

a verdict of murder in the first degr’ee.

"The theory of murder is that Sirhan Sirhan premeditaeed and 

deliberated upon his intent to act. That involves intent to kill. The 

intent to kill is somethin that the defense wll, let us say, concede.

more —
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"It is the issue of premeditation and deliberation that the 
defense is primarily concerned, Premeddtatioo and deliberation, as 

distoguiished between frsst-ond second-degree murder, ^ean some ki°d 
of decision-making process atout the act. Is is the weighing if argu­
ments pro and con, rather than acting on rash impulse.

"The law envisions the posssiility that an in^vi^al may harbor 
malice aforethought, they (the lew) know the Shing he Is doi.ng is wrong 

but he acts so qU.ckly without making the decision as to how he is going 

So act, so Shat there is no prrmerdtation.
"The law does not prescribe to you to what extent an iniividual 

m.ght weigh and premeditate tetere a calctila^d goal to kill ie formed.
"The law says this will depend on the situation. and the indivi­

dual -- that a cold, calculated decisoon to kill may be arrived at withio 
minutes or seconds, depending on the cirumistances an.d the in^vic^al.

"In this case, the people suggest t° you that the cold and calcu­
lated decision t;o take the life of Robert F. Kennedy hti. brrn arrvved at 

long in advance of Sinan's arrival at the Ambassador Hotel. ,
"The facts in. the opinion of the prosecution lead logically to 

the conclusion that this iefro.iant did not act in a rash or impulsive 
manner at the tmie he fieed the bullet into t^ brtio of Robett F.
Kennedy at the Ambassador Hotel.

With reject to his state of mind, we are asked to accept when 

the iefeoiant tells us he first intended to go to the Ambassador Hotel

more —
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because of the Rafferty party. Some time in the past, he and Kathleen 
Rafferty had been in school together. There is no suggeetion that 
Kathleen Raaferty would have been glad to see Sirhan and one would 

suppose that some year’s had passed since they had been at school together. 
"Mr. Sirhan is 25 years old. He isn’t the only young protester.

I view with alarm the protests of the last few years. They alarm me and 

I wonder what will happen a few years from now when these protesters take 

our places?
"Sirhan's view is shared by many. He is not the only one who

is disillusooned. His illusoons are shared by many. They are not dis-
illuioons — Hussions, perhaps.

"But he has an absolute right to have opinions not shared by 

the maaooity. It is all right to entertain ideas that this is not the

best of all possible worlds.
"In any event, this is Mr. Sirhan. He felt rejected at the 

Raferty party.

"He is something of a lonprr. He doesn't want to stay where 

he is not wanted,
"In tie light of that, and if Sirhan hated Kennedy as has been 

made clear, and if he felt he wasn’t wanted, why did he stay them?
"But stay he did.

"From the point of view of the assassination, it doesn't make 

any diferennce whether the senator was going to the Colonial Room first 

or the Ambassador Room first.

more —
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In one way or the other, he was going both places.
"I suggest it was no fortutoous circmstance that Sirhan waited 

in a place where at one time or another the senator would pass and become 

a target.

"All the logi.c points to this — his hatred, the notebooks, his 
visitng the ranges, his rapid fire, hU inqUiry at the pantry, the loaded 
gun in his belt, the mini-mag aimimoition, the induct of tiw defendant, 

his statements after his arrest, the cute way he avoided identifying him­

self.
"Now with respect to the defendant's state of mind. His testi­

mony is replete with what I consider to be lies, some of at demonssrabLe, 

so>me not.

"Anything in this case which would appear to indicate that this 

was premedtatedl or deliberated murder i.s dented by the daterdanT, regard­
less of who said it — even by those who are tay-ng to help him, who ad­

vanced his best interests in this case.
"We beieeve that the defendant i.s not divorced from the reality 

of his positoon as a defendant in a murder case.
"It has been suggested that this defendant exists in a delusional 

state.

"The defendant has always had the hope to get away with this.
He knows some people don’t like what he has done. This hope i.s alternated

with despair.

more —
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"It is conceded by both sides that Mr. Sirhan is not a weei 

man. The question is how sick is he? The question is what does 'mature* 

mean? The question is what does 'meaningful' mean?

"'Mature' — old enough to procreate, ripe for picking. Does 

it mean you must have the global view of the world of a great sage or 

philosphhef? Wat exacCly i.s 'mature'?
"tfliat is 'meaanngful'? How much i.s the individual required to 

read into his contemplated act before it becomes meani.ngiul?

"No individual after mature and meemnjngful reflection would 
commit murder.

"Yet murder i.s commonplace in our society. Wat are we do do 

with indivdduals who commit this?

"We deal in a society that i.s ssill grappling with the solutions 

to the problem of crime, ssill grappling as best it might with what can 

be described as criminal responiibility.
"We adm-t Sirhan is less than the full man. How much less I 

don't know. He is the man you have seen i.n court, the man who testified
on the wi-tmess stand eagerly.. .with flair, with intilliiince somewhat 
unusual in criminal courts if you accept my word for it.

"The question is, that given the degree of mennall iineess or 
diminished capacity if you will that Sirhan has, hie yet had the abblity 
to harbor malice and ia.nurely and ieennngi.U.ly, whatever it means to you, 
premeditate and deliberate on what it means to take the Ife of a feioow 
human being;. That i.s your job^

* * *
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THURSDAY, APRIL 10 — The three defense attorneys for Sirhan B. 

Sirhan, Grant B. Cooper, Russsei E. Parsons and Em.le Zola Berman, today 

offered their sumnaaions in the case callnng for mercy tempered, with 
justice for the young Arab.

According to a report in a Los Angeles newspaper (Times), Cooper 

told the jury:
"We are not here to free a guilty man. He is guilty of having 

killed Sen. Robert F. Kennedy. We are not asking for an acquittal.

"On the facts of this case — whether Mr. Sirhan likes it or 
not — Mr. Sirhan deserves to spend the rest of his life in a penitent­

iary."
Continued the newspaper:

"Cooper, in a detailed explanation of thie various aspects of the 
law that Superior Judge Herbert V. Waaker will give the jury to judge 
the facts by, said that on the basis of both eviLdencr and law, the 
defense ’will ask you to return a verdict of murder in the second-dogr^.1

"Such a verdict, Cooper stressed, would ssill enable the jury 
to sentence Sirhan to Ifee in prison. 'Because of the conduct that brought
him to the bar of justice in this case,’ Cooper said., 1 I wooucdi’t want 
Sirhan Sirhan turned loose on society. 11

Another Los Angeles newspaper (Hrrald-Eaealiner) published 

excerpts of remarks by the trio of lawyers and uuoted Cooper, in part, 
as foioows:
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